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SUBCOVM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 4
[ Gavel ]
CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N: Good norni ng. W

ready to go? GCkay. Good norning, | am Counci

Menber Mark Weprin. 1’mchair of the Zoning and
Franchi ses Subcommittee. 1°d like to wel cone
everybody here today. |’mjoined by the by the

foll owi ng nenbers of the subconm ttee, Counci

Menber Gentile, Council Menber Gardoni ck, Counci
Menber Torres and Council Menber Reynoso. Those
are nenbers of the Subconmittee. W are also
joined by Council Menber Mark Levine and Counci
Menber Laurie Cunbo who have itens on the agenda in
their districts. W’re going to be junping around
on the agenda a little bit, | apol ogize. Be we are
going to start in Brooklyn. Land Use #86, the

Enpi re Boul evard Rezoning. 1’d like to call up
Jerald Johnson, | believe it is. M. Johnson, | ook
at that, right on gueue. Please state your nane
for the record and describe your application.
Whenever you're ready. | amgoing to have slip out
nyself, personally for a few m nutes and |’ m goi ng
to | eave the chair in Council Menber Garodnick’s
hand when t hat happens in about 10 or 15 m nutes.

So whenever you’'re ready, M. Johnson
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 5

JERALD JOHNSON: Does this go up on the

screen?

[ Background tal k]

JERALD JOHNSON: There you go. No,
that’s okay 1’ve got it here. | can see it.

[ Background tal k]

[ Pause]

JERALD JOHNSON: Good norni ng Chairmn
Weprin and Council Menbers. M nane is Jerry
Johnson and I'mwith the firmFox Rothschild and we
represent the applicant in this action, 529 Enpire
Real ty Corporation. The action before you today is
a rezoning of a portion of four city bl ocks al ong
Enpire Boul evard in the Crown Hei ghts and W ngate
nei ghbor hood of Brooklyn. The action is to nodify
the R5 District on these block fronts to an R7A
In addition, at the request of Gty Planning, we
are changi ng the conmercial overlay on the site
froma Cl-3 to a C2-4. And also at the request of
the Departnment of City Planning, we' re reducing the
coverage of the overlay by approximately 50 feet on
the western side and the southern edge. And that’s

to bring it up and it will nake the residenti al
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SUBCOVM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 6
zoning consistent with the residential uses on the
site.

The applicant is the owner of four tax
lots on the northern side of Enpire Boul evard. And
this project will allow himto redevelop the site.
It’s currently devel oped with a parking |ot and
some two and three story buildings with a ground
fl oor supermarket and a health facility. And this
is a site plan of the proposed devel opnent. This
is the project.

It will allow a new building with
approxi mately 114,000 square feet of floor area.
The ground floor will be retail space, supermnarket
and potentially ancillary retail space, 24,000
approxi mte square feet. The second floor will be
21,000 of nedical facility and/or comunity
facility space. And there will be 68,000 square
feet of residential use on floors three through
seven. There will also be an accessory parking
garage bel ow grade for approxi mately 66 vehi cl es.
And the building conplies fully with the R7-A
Zoning District designation.

Now i f you have any questi ons.
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 7

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N:  Thank you very
much. 1’d like to call on Laurie. Do you want to
start? O do you have a question?

[ Background tal k]

CHAI RPERSON VWEPRIN: 1’11 tell you
what, okay, let’s do that. Richard do you want to
testify now, everyone in favor. |s that okay M.
Johnson? Pl ease stay here for questions. This way
if the borough president brings up issues and has
guestions, we can ask you both.

M. Bearak, just please state your nane
again for the record and who you are. And then
gi ve your statenent.

Rl CHARD BEARAK: My nane is Richard
Bearak. I’mland use director for Brooklyn Borough
President Eric Adams. | will be reading the
borough president’s remarks.

| want to thank Chairperson Weprin and
menbers of the City Council Land Use Subcomm ttee
for Zoning and Franchi ses for the opportunity to
testify today on the Enpire Boul evard rezoni ng and
al so acknow edgi ng Brookl yn nenbers, Cunbo, Gentile

and Reynoso.
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In my Land Use reconmendation to the

Cty Planning Conmi ssion and the City Council, |

8

supported this proposed rezoning that is conpatible

with the | and uses and was represented to benefit

t he nei ghbor hood by providing a supermarket,

community services a substantial nunber of new jobs

and the inclusion of affordable housing units.
Wil e the proposed rezoning would all ow what the
appl i cant has expressed interest in devel oping.
Merely adopting the rezoning is not a sufficient
guar ant ee of what woul d be devel oped.

Before the city council takes action,
it is inportant to receive a conmtnent that ny
reconmendations will actually be realized in the
future in the devel opnent of this site. | am
concerned that there is Iimted access to fresh
food stores in many nei ghborhoods. It is a
priority of mne to create and maintain access to
heal thy food options throughout all of Brooklyn.
Fresh and affordable food currently exist at this
site. And the city council should receive
assurances that a supermarket remains at the site

as is part of the new proposed devel opnent.
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SUBCOMM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 9

Not enough Br ookl yn nei ghbor hoods have
adequat e access to healthcare services al so, and
therefor as a result we should utilize devel opnent
opportunities of conmunity facility space
preferably for affordable state of the art nedical
services. According to the rezoning there is no
obligation on the devel opnment to actually provide
community facility space as suggested by the
applicant. | am seeking certainty that the
represented community facility space is actually
part of the final building plans.

| amcommtted to providing
opportunities for Brooklyn's working famlies to
have access to affordable housing. |F the building
wer e devel oped pursuant to the zoning resolutions
fresh floor area provisions, it is very reasonable
to expect the building to have at |east 20%of its
residential floor area earmarked as affordable
housing. Including at |east a 50% preference for
residents of community District 9.

To be certain that is prom sed becones
reality, the council should seek a guarantee that
devel opnent proceeds according to the filing of a

| egal instrunent that assures a specific m ninum
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 10
amount of floor area will be set aside for
supermarket use that is consistent with the zoning
resolutions fresh requirements for the type and
food products nade avail able, conmunity facility
space and affordabl e housi ng.

Finally the expected devel opnment from
this proposed rezoning provides an opportunity to
retain Brooklyn based contractors and
subcontractors especially at | east 20%
participation for those who are desi gnate MAB
establishnments. As well as local hiring and hiring
for returning mlitary veterans for the retail and
community facility tenants. | expect that the
devel oper woul d take steps to coordinate with the
appropriate nonitoring agency so that we are able
to neasure our success. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N: Thank you M.
Bearak. | would like to call Laurie Cunbo, who
represents this area, who has questions.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBG:  Thank you. Good
norning. | amgoing to forego ny statenent because
| have a nunber of questions. Sone of which were
answered in the letter. But there are several

other elenents of this project that weren't brought
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 11

to the screen in this presentation. So | want to
di scuss those further. The first question | have
i's, can you descri be any other devel opnent projects
prior to this one that your client has engaged in?
Is this his first major devel opnent project? O
have there been other projects in the past that
have been. ..

JERALD JOHNSON: This is the only one
that | amaware of. But he is a business owner in
New York City. He has a presence in Brooklyn and
in New York. And he is a long standi ng nenber of
the comunity.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBCO  How | ong has
your client owned the property that we're
di scussing at this tinme?

JERALD JOHNSON: Ch. | don’t know t hat
answer but | can get it to you.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO And is the first
housi ng project that your client has engaged in?

JERALD JOHNSON: He’'s nore of a
retailer, but | believe he has had invol venent in
others, but I will follow through and find out the
exact relationship he has had wi th other housing

devel opnents.
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 12

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  Because t hat
woul d be very inportant in ternms of., | respect
this letter, but at the sane tine it’s also sinply
a letter. And so without any prior track record in
terns of has he done a housing project before, and
has his obligations that appear in the letter been
realized previously. Because without that we're
just hoping that what’s stated in this letter wll
actually be reali zed.

JERALD JOHNSON: Understood. | nean he
is a long standi ng nmenber of the conmunity and he
wants to redevelop this site in a manner consi stent
with the plans that are in front of you. And he
has agreed to the affordable housing conmtnent.

He understands how i nportant that is. And al so,
you know, being a nmenber of this comunity and
developing it in an appropriate manner. He is also
committed to the fresh program for the supermarket
use as well as bringing a comunity facility and
nmedi cal facility back to the site.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO. As a |ong
standi ng nenber, it would be good to know how | ong.

JERALD JOHNSON: Understood. | wll

find out and I will get that answer to you.
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SUBCOMM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 13

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  Thank you. |
wanted to go back in terns of the letter as you
spoke about its relationship with Brooklyn
Hospital. So that facility, | understand is a WC
progr am

JERALD JOHNSON: That's correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO:  Is the facility
open, not open? Has it been out of business? Has
t here been any communi cation with Brooklyn Hospital
to find out, do they even have any interest in this
proj ect ?

JERALD JOHNSON: They.., | believe the
facility is open. | spoke to ny client the other
day, and he said that it was.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  So it is open?

JERALD JOHNSON: It is open, yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBG  You don’t
believe it’s open?

JERALD JOHNSON: He said that it was.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  You know it’s
open?

JERALD JOHNSON: He said that it was.
And when this noves forward he would work with them

to stay in the building if they would like, in the
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SUBCOVM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 14
new building. O another simlar facility bring it
back.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO.  Are we...

JERALD JOHNSON: | don’t know the exact
nature of his ongoing relationship with Brooklyn
Hospital. | know they are the current tenant and
he has a good rel ationship with them now.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  But is Brooklyn
Hospital at this tinme aware that this change could
potentially happen? And that there would
potentially be this opportunity for them avail abl e.

JERALD JOHNSON: | woul d have to get
back to ny client on that.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO:  kay. Wien we
tal k about conmunity facility and conmunity uses.
Is the conmunity use what you' re referring to as
Br ookl yn Hospital ?

JERALD JOHNSON: It woul d either be
like a nedical facility, a conmunity facility use
group 3 or 4. But yes, partly it would be the
medi cal facility, whether it’s Brooklyn Hospital or
another facility. O it could be other comunity

facility uses permtted by the zoning.
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 15

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO.  Have those
potential other community ideas been discussed in
ternms of.., if for whatever reason this programwth
Br ookl yn Hospital doesn’t happen. Have there been
other ideas in terns of how that community space
could be utilized?

JERALD JOHNSON: Yes. It could be
utilized for umm., | nean we’ ve had di scussions, it
could be utilized for like a nuseum a children’'s
museum or anot her type of nuseum Anot her nedica
facility, Kingsbrook Jew sh potentially. The
Br ookl yn Hospital could remain.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  And how woul d
you go about the process of selecting what that
community facility would be. Wuld the community
have any real tangible input in terns of
under st andi ng what the facility and how t he
facility could be utilized in the conmunity?

JERALD JOHNSON: | mean, we could work
with the conmunity board with the council nenber to
try to determ ne what the space woul d be |ike when
it nmoves forward.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO.  That’s a good

i dea.
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 16

JERALD JOHNSON: And keep you invol ved
in the process. You know, generally, as it noves
forward there will be plans, there will square
footages, it depends on the institutions square
f oot age needs and whether or not it fits into their
overal | devel opnent plan and whether this woul d
work with them But we would work with you and
ot her nenbers of the community to try and find out
and to try to get a space that’s appropriate.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO. As far as the
supermarket goes, will it be the same supernarket
that will be reopening there?

JERALD JOHNSON: It may.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBC: It may. O it
coul d be another type of supermarket. O it could
just be.., you could use the full 24,000 plus square
feet to have a m xed-use of conmerci al spaces.

JERALD JOHNSON: Well, there is no
restriction currently to have a supernarket use
there. But the applicant is committed to bringing
t hat supermar ket and/or anot her supermarket into
the space. As it was nentioned, the site is in the
district that permts fresh certification, fresh

program And they will be seeking that and our
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 17
application has anal yzed a devel opnent with a fresh
certification and then the floor area exenption
that allows a little additional floor area on the
site. As the borough president nentioned, it would
allow a small increase in floor area and you know,
shoul d we go forward with that, we woul d endeavor
to utilize that floor area bunp and it would fit
within the envel ope of the building permtted on
the site now. And again that would be additional
floor area for residential use and affordable
progr ans.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  Can you speak to
nme alittle bit about the fresh progran? Has your
client ever.., because your client is in the
super mar ket business, | would imagine. O is this
the only supermarket that he owns.

JERALD JOHNSON: He doesn’t own the
super mar ket .

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO. He owns the
property.

JERALD JOHNSON: The supermarket is the
tenant and he owns the property. He is in the
retailing business.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO.  Ckay.
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SUBCOMM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 18

JERALD JOHNSON: And the fresh program
is a program adopted by the Bl oonberg
adm ni stration, the prior admnistration, to bring
supermarkets with a certain size and breadth of
product, like fresh produce, fresh neats, to
nei ghbor hoods that are underserved by those types
of uses. So that those food products wll be
avai l able to communiti es where they are not.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO. How woul d your
client be able to inpose that onto a tenant that
may not be interested in that?

JERALD JOHNSON: He could nake it as
part of the |ease negotiations. He gets a huge
benefit out of it, because he can then get the
fl oor area exenption for the space that’'s part of
the food market, which he can then add to the
building. So he can inpose it as part of the |ease
negotiations with the tenant. You can't.., you
know, to apply for the certification, you need to
have the floor plans and you need to have the store
desi gned, and you need to have the | ease in place.
So it hasn’t been done yet. And that’s why it

wasn’t done as part of the process.
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 19

And then the tenant al so gets a benefit
as the borough president said, there' s tax
exenptions, and they get sone funding fromthe city
to go in that type of facility. So it’s a benefit
to everybody involved to pursue that program

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO. Do you know at
this tinme, why your client, because | know that it
was said that it would be pursued, but in the
letter which says that there will be a conm tnment
for whatever reason, why the 421A program
potentially would not be advantageous or are there
any reasons why you would not pursue it after a
full investigation. Because we're basically
| ooking into you doing the research to determne if
this is going to be a project that is going to be
feasible utilizing that particul ar program

JERALD JOHNSON: | believe that he
woul d utilize the 421A programas long as it’'s.., |
nmean it’s up for renewal in a year. So when this
noves forward.., this project started a long tine
ago. So, in order to do the full investigations,
you need to have a viable product that you can go
take to the progranms and to get on the list and to

desi gn your building pursuant to all the
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SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 20
requirenments of the prograns. But, if that program
is in place, he will pursue it. If there is
anot her one he will also pursue that. On the 421A
we are in an exclusion zone, so that any benefit of
the 421A nust be utilized on site for affordable
housi ng. So the affordabl e housing woul d have to
be built on-site in order to acconmodate that
program And then if, indeed, in the future, there
has even some talk and the city rezones a portion
of Enpire Boul evard and creates an inclusionary
housi ng desi gnated area. W’re not adverse to
that, and we would welcone it, and we would build
accordingly, if we hadn’t gone forward first.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO:  The Crown
Hei ghts community is really at the epicenter of a
| ot of the changes that are happening in Brooklyn,
New York. And, as you known, housing is probably
t he nunber one issue that all residents discuss.
And |’ ve always come fromthe school of doing above
and beyond the call of duty. And | think it would
be great to have that level of commtnent in this
particular district in Crown Heights. Wuld your
client consider changi ng and goi ng above and beyond

the call of duty to doing a 70-30 mi x versus an 80-




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 21

20 mi x. ©Going above the call of duty and being
exceptional and extraordinary versus just doing
what’ s required.

JERALD JOHNSON:  We could ook into
that. He could look in to that. Right now the
prograns that do exist are, you know, 80-20s, but
we could ook into that and the economcs of it and
see if it works.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  Have you and
your client discussed that previously? Because
that’s very inportant to nme. | understand right
now t hat under this program it’'s a snall building,
relatively. So there are about 68 units you said?

JERALD JOHNSON: Currently.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO. G ve or take?

JERALD JOHNSON: G ve or take.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO. W th 50% being 2
bedroom apartnents and the rest being a mx of 1
bedr oom and st udi os.

JERALD JOHNSON:  Yes. That’'s what the
af fordabl e prograns require. That’'s correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO. (Ckay. And so
with that, with the 20% there would be about 13 to

14 affordabl e units?
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JERALD JOHNSON:  Yes.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO.  And this would
allow for maybe just one or two that an additional
fam |y nmenber could potentially benefit from

JERALD JOHNSON:  Yes. And if we did
the fresh programand got the floor area exenption
for the retail space, there could be an additional
roughly 12 unites added to the m x. The floor area
permtted goes up to roughly 80,000 for
residential, under this schene. And approximtely
80 units. So it would also increase under that.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO: It woul d
i ncrease the affordable portion of it?

JERALD JOHNSON: It would increase the
overall residential density which would al so
i ncrease the affordabl e conponent.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO.  And then we
could nove to the 70-30, is what you’re saying.

JERALD JOHNSON:  We woul d have to talk
about that. W would have to analyze if to see if
it works.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO | also wanted to
tal k about the MABE.

JERALD JOHNSON:  Yes.
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COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO.  That is
sonmething that in this letter appears to be a part
of your commtnment as well. Can you talk to ne
about.., I would imgine that you may not know t hat
much about it but, I want to nmake sure that that is
a critical part of this project. Were would you
do your recruitnment in terns of making sure that
MABEs are a part of this project?

JERALD JOHNSON: My understanding is
there is a programthrough the Borough President’s
office. And we would work with themto do that.

My client also knows a nunber of people in the
community that have MABEs and he would reach out to
themto be part of the project.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  Can you speak to
that as well? Thank you.

ROBERT BEARAK: | just want to correct.
We don’t have a program \What we’'re trying to do
is take the current systemthat’s set up through
council legislation actually, with the city
agencies. Take that and try to organize it in a
way where it’s easier for the devel opers to have
access to the range of MABE busi nesses. W' re just

trying to make it nore user friendly. So we’'re in
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the infant stages of that. So if we could devel op
sonet hi ng that hel ps connect devel opers to these
MABEs, just to nake it nore attractive to utilize
MABEs, especially in non-governnental projects
where it’s not a requirement. So that’'s why we're
trying to raise the bar in getting this to happen.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO: We're not about
the requirenents. Certainly not. W want to
exceed the requirenments at all tinmes. But | just
want to state, as stated in your letter, the MABE
piece is critical to that, as well.

Just want to discuss, the other part of
this project which | have great concerns about,
which | didn't see addressed in the letter, were
the properties that are individually owed. And so
the challenge that | have with this is that those
parcel s of |and that have houses on themright now,
once this zoni ng change happens, those properties
wi || beconme exponentially nore valuable. And the
chal | enge that we face will be that those
i ndividuals may want to sell those properties to
collectively to one person, who may want to build
| uxury condom niunms or others that wouldn't have to

go through this process that you’ re undertaking
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right now One of the things that | had asked and
didnt see in the letter was, if these individual
properties were owned by one person. Wre they
owned by several persons? O.

JERALD JOHNSON: | | ooked in the tax
records and what | could see is that they seened to
be all individually owned. They re not
collectively owned or different entities owned
them So right now, they re not considered
devel opnent sites, individually. But again, you're
correct, in the future, sonebody could purchase al
of themand create two snall devel opnent site. One
on Brooklyn Avenue. And the one opposite our site,
on.., at the corner of Lanont Court and Enpire
Boul evard.

But again, right now, they’re not
consi dered devel opnent sites. But | believe they
are all individually owned and not collectively
owned.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO:  Can you al so
talk to me about umm |’ m skipping around here but,
what about the parking issue in terns of this

entire project. How w Il that be addressed?
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understand that there is going to be sonething
under gr ound.

JERALD JOHNSON: That’'s correct.

There’ s a bel ow grade parking garage that there’s.

and if you |l ook on the plan on either end there’'s
an entrance and an exit. So there will be two
entrances and exits into the garage.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO:  And that will
provi de parking for how many?

JERALD JOHNSON: Accessory parking for
the building is roughly 66 spaces.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO. Ckay. And
that’s just for the building.

JERALD JOHNSON: That’'s accessory to
the building. That’s correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBCO:  Ckay.

JERALD JOHNSON: It’s not public.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO:  Ckay. And ny
final question is. |If the rezoning that the de
Bl asio adm nistration is proposing for Enpire

Boul evard actual | y happens, those parcels of |and

that | just discussed that are individually owned.

How woul d t hose particul ar properties be inpacted

26

'r
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by the rezoning proposed by the Bl oonberg
adm ni stration?

JERALD JOHNSON: The de Bl asio
adm ni stration? O the, okay.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO O what were you
t hi nki ng? Because | want to be clear.

JERALD JOHNSON: No you just said the
Bl oonber g admi ni strati on.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBG Oh, |I'’mso
sorry.

JERALD JOHNSON: First you said de
Bl asi o and then you said Bloonberg. So | got a
little bit confused.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO. Oh, I'msorry ny
mnd is in adifferent world.

JERALD JOHNSON: Because we started in
the prior adm nistration.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  Under the de
Blasio. | mean you started in the Bl oonberg
adm ni stration now we're in the de Blasio. |Its
budget tinme and I'ma little sl eepy.

JERALD JOHNSON:  Understood. So, |
nean basically they woul d, assum ng that what would

happen in this | ocation and what has been di scussed
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is asimlar type of density which would be an R7
or an R7A, down Enpire Boulevard. And that it
woul d al so becone an inclusionary housing
designated area. And if that’s the case, the
zoning on those sites currently, if this gets
approval, will be R7TA. But they will becone.., they
wi Il come under the inclusionary housi ng designated
area. And then that woul d becone nandatory
i ncl usionary housing on the site. So they would
then be treated the sanme as the rest of the
rezoning. |If indeed that is what happens on the
site, based on the study.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  (Ckay. Thank
you. Those are all the questions that | have at
this nonent. Thank you.

JERALD JOHNSON: Thank you.

COUNCI L MEMBER GARDONI CK:  Thank you
Counci | Menber Cunbo. | want to note that we’ ve
been joined by Council Menber Ignizio, the Chair of
the Land Use Conmittee, David Greenfield and
Counci | Menber R chards.

| want to junp in with two very quick
questions. Then we’'re going to go to Counci

Menber Reynoso.
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One is, you noted in your presentation
that there was a request that you reduce the
commercial overlay. It was a request made by Gty
Pl anning. Can you explain that a little bit, as to
what exactly that has to do with?

JERALD JOHNSON: So if you go to the
drawi ng on your left. You see the dark |ine which
is the difference between the R5 and the R71 in the
initial map. The conmercial overlay extends a
little bit beyond that Iine in the R71 both on the
west and on the south. Those two bl ocks between
Br ookl yn Avenue and Lanont Court. In City Planning
those sites are currently residentially devel oped
with no conmercial use on them And so City
Pl anni ng just wanted us to reduce the commerci al
overlay to be coincident with the existing Iine and
where there are comercial uses.

COUNCI L MEMBER GARCDNI CK:  So it
reflects what is actually present on the site.

JERALD JOHNSON: That's correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER GARDONI CK: My ot her
guestion that | had was about the parking spaces.
| noted 66 accessory parking spaces. In this

current area that is not something that requires
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any special action fromthe council. That is
you're as of right with the devel opment of this
si ze?

JERALD JOHNSON: That’s correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER GARODNI CK: Thank you
Let ne go to Council Menber Reynoso.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOCSO  Thank you
Counci | Menber Garodni ck and thank you Counci
Menber Cunmbo. | have a couple of questions.
have a | ot of questions actually. So bear with ne
pl ease.

Do you know how nmuch tax relief you'll
be receiving on a yearly basis if you fall into the
421A inclusionary program., and inclusionary
pr ogr anf?

JERALD JOHNSON: | do not know
specifically, what that nunber woul d be.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO Do you know

roughly what that nunber woul d be?

JERALD JOHNSON: | mean it’s what the
programrequires. | don’t have the nunbers figured
out. It’s based on what the taxes would be and the

relief.
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COUNCI L MEMBER REYNCSO I n the.., for

the Land Use Conmittee hearing, | would appreciate
it if you guys could try to get that. Because |
just want to know how nuch noney you’re saving and
you're getting on a yearly basis fromthis tax
relief. To nake sure that we clearly see what your
benefits are and what our benefits are going to be.
Also, | would Iike to note that the mayor’s
af fordabl e housing plan is going to be a | ot nore
aggressive than this old 80-20 nodel that | can’t
stand, personally. | think we’'re giving away
everyt hing when we do an 80-20 nodel. | do think
that the mayor, when he does his rezoning, mght be
asking for nore. | would love to hear fromhim
what his thoughts on this itemare. And if we can
get nore, like a 70-30, which was what Counci
Menber Cunmbo was asking for. | would say hold to
guarantee that we get at |least 30% Just a note.
20% i s mnimum and mandatory. 30%isn’t
exceptional, Council Menber Cunbo, | just want to
say that. 30%is not exceptional. They' re getting
this benefit and they' re going to be naking a | ot

of nmoney. Wat was this property before you got
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it? Before the rezoning. Wat is the property
currently, | guess, is what |’ m asking?

JERALD JOHNSON: The property is a 2
and 3 story conmercial buildings. That have just
ground fl oor commercial use. There's no
residential on the site currently. And there’'s an
accessory parking lot that’'s just vacant.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO  What is the
price per square foot in rental for the comrercial ?

JERALD JOHNSON: Oh. | don’t have
t hat .

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO | woul d al so
appreciate it, if I could get that at the Land Use
Hearing. For the Land Use Hearing, the next
comm ttee hearing. Because |I'’mgoing to defer to
Counci | Menber Cunmbo today, but | do want to note
that | have a |l ot of questions that | want to have
answered. It’s pennies on the dollar comrerci al
converted to residential. Are these going to be
for sale, or are they going to be rental s?

JERALD JOHNSON: | think it was going
to be rental.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO:  Ckay.
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JERALD JOHNSON: If it goes forward.
If it’s an affordable program it’'s easier to do as
a rental program as opposed to for sale.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNCSO  So it woul d
probably be rentals. So it will be yours for a
long tinme. Alright. Because the anobunt of noney
that you' re going to be nmaking per square foot is
going to be a lot. CQutside of the tax relief that
you' re going to be receiving, the conversion itself
is going to net you a lot of nmoney. | just to nake
sure that that’'s clear.

This is a letter. Letters in the
history. W rezoned all of the waterfront in
Wl lianmsburg. And for the first portion of it, we
got letters. And it’'s pretty nuch destroyed our
community when it cones to the infrastructure and
the inpact that it’s had on our conmunity. So we
started going into sonething that’s nore concrete
than a letter. And fromwhat |1’ m hearing today,
fromyour testinony, and a |lot of the questions
that Council Menber Cunbo was asking, there was
"1l get back to yous or | don’t knows. And that’s
concerning. It’s a concern. | want to nmake sure

that anything that’s being asked for by the counci




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

SUBCOMM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 34
menber can be put on sonething that’s nore
contractually obligated as opposed to faith effort.
Qur history with developers in the City of New York
hasn’t necessarily worked on faith or been positive
on faith. So | think we need to start talking
about this supernarket being there and nandating it
that it’s there. The 70-30 being sonething that we
can mandate through our power or whatever we can
do. There’'s also issues of the hospital which
wasn’'t aware of. Those are all itens that we can
tal k about naki ng mandatory through this rezoning.

So, no soft conmtnents is what |’'m
saying. | also want to be clear. On the 50% t wo-
bedroons. So the 421A program allows for two
different types of bedroom settings or bedroom
makeup. One, it mirrors what you put in. So if
you put in 50% one bedroons and 50% two bedroons
and your nmarket rate.., | mean 50% studi os and 50%
one bedroons in the nmarket rate, that’s exactly
what they get in the affordabl e housing program |
want to be clear that 50%is option B. That
devel opers very rarely, if ever use, when we cone

to the 50% two bedroons.
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You have an option, after we sign this
off, to build all your apartnents, studios and one-
bedroons and that all you' re required to do is
match that. You don’t need to give 50% t wo-
bedroons? AmI| correct? O am| wong?

JERALD JOHNSON:  You're correct that
the program says that you have a unit mx in the
bui | ding and that the affordable programmrrors
that unit mx or the other option is 50% t wo-
bedroons and the rest a m x of two-plus and the
rest is a mx of studios and one-bedroons.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO  And
financially nore beneficial are advantageous
portion of those options are definitely the
mrroring ones, especially if you' re not building
t wo- bedroons or three-bedroons. So, | just want to
be clear that you have that option. And even
t hough you can tell us you want to build two-
bedr oons, when the option is given to you, | think
you're going to go for the one that nakes you nore
noney. Not necessarily the one that’'s better for
the comunity.

JERALD JOHNSON:  But it’'s al so based on

a mx of the demand in the nei ghborhood and in this
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nei ghbor hood, | believe there’s a demand for |arger
units. So the two-bedroons and plus would be a
definite mx that’s proposed for this building.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOSO Right. So in
the City of New York, the demand is for |arger
bedroons. And we know t hat devel opers don't care
about what the demand for the needy in the Gty of
New York are. Wat they care about is naking
noney. So it’s about getting people in there that
are going to pay the nost anount of nobney. So need
is conpletely irrelevant when it cones to
devel opnment. | just want to be very clear to you
That’s why we’'re here. Fighting for 80-20. If we
didn’t have that option, we wouldn’t even be
di scussi ng 20% af f ordabl e housing. So | just
wanted you to be very mindful. | understand need,
but 90% of residents that apply for NYCHA for
exanpl e, 90% of themare |ooking for two and three-
bedroom apartnents. The mgjority of them need
famly housing. 90% And the Gty of New York and
the especially the devel opers, haven't been
bui l ding |l arger apartnents. \Wat they’ ve been

bui l di ng are studi os and one-bedroons for a much
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nore affluent community. O folks that have nore
nmoney and they can rent for higher rents.

So | understand statistics, but they
don’t play in the real estate world. Statistics
don’t mean nuch when it cones to housing.

[ Background tal k]

Ckay, thank you very nuch. |
appreciate your tinmne.

JERALD JOHNSON: Thank you Counci
Menber .

COUNCI L MEMBER GARCDNI CK: Thank you
Counci| Menmber Reynoso. Council Menber Cunbo, the
floor is yours.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  Counci |l Menber
Reynoso. | just want to thank you for your point
of clarity on exceptionalism

COUNCI L MEMBER GARCDNI CK:  Thank you
And seeing no other questions and no other nenbers
of the public who wish to testify. W are going to
cl ose the hearing on Land Use 86. W will also be
| aying over this itemuntil Thursday, 10:30 for a
Zoning Conmittee vote. W appreciate your
testinony today. W’'re going to now begin the

hearing on ...
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[Mc off]

Land Use 88 and we're going to call up
the representatives. Before we do that Counci
Menmber 1gni zio has asked for a nmonent to conment.

COUNCI L MEMBER IGNI ZI O Thank you very
much. And gentlenmen | just want to thank you for
comng in and working with our colleagues. And I
just don’t want you to wal k away, or anybody to
wal k away that this board, that this commttee is
based in an adversarial relationship. The best
way, we the council, can achieve the goals of
af fordabl e housing in addition to working with the
communities, is to work with the devel opnent
community to say these are the needs of the
community. Some things, which ny coll eague had
nmenti oned which are inportant to his conmunity,
cannot be required by |law, but can be through
negotiations. So, in that vein, | want to extend
an olive branch to the devel opnent community and
not nmake it seemlike we're here to be adversari es.
My col | eagues are fighting very strongly for their
communi ties for what they believe their comunities
need. But | think it’s inportant to recogni ze the

best way to achieve that is through partnership and
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not in an adversarial relationship. |’ mnot
speaki ng for Antonio or Cunbo or anybody else. |
must mean overall. M relationship on this zoning
comrittee for many years, that’s al ways been the
best way to achi eve the goals, which is through
negotiation. Thank you very nuch.

JERALD JOHNSON: Thank you.

COUNCI L MEMBER GARDONI CK:  Thank you
And we’' |l let that be for the nonent, the fina
word on this application. W’I| close the hearing
on Land Use 86 and open the hearing on Land Use 88
and call up the representatives for Artinus at 316
West 118'" Street, Robert Ezrapour, Evan Kashani an
and Mel ani e Meyers. Wl cone.

[ Background tal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER GARCDNI CK: Wl cone.
And whenever you're settl ed.

UNI DENTI FI ED FEMALE: Yes. Just a
couple of mnutes to get settled.

COUNCI L MEMBER GARCDNI CK:  Ckay that's
fine.

UNI DENTI FI ED FEMALE: Al ways t he nonent

of whet her technol ogy works.
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COUNCI L MEMBER GARCDNI CK: G eat
suspense, yes. It looks like you re going to get
it though. There you go.

UNI DENTI FI ED FEMALE: So Evan, you want
to start?

EVAN KASHANI AN:  Sure.

COUNCI L MEMBER GARCDNI CK: | f you'd
just introduce yourselves and go right ahead.

EVAN KASHANI AN: My nane i s Evan
Kashanian. |’mrepresenting Artinus. W are a
Harl em based community devel oper. W work where we
believe in building communities. As they grow we
work with |ocal partners, with schools, with
churches and with all the community groups to neke
sure that as projects happen, the community grows
around us. Wat you're |ooking at is devel opnents
that we’ve done in the central Harlemarea. This
is five-buildings. A before and after of the way
projects | ooked. W’ve also noved our office
recently to West 118'" Street, between Frederick
Dougl ass Boul evard and Manhattan Avenue. And our
operation runs out of there now So I'd like to

i ntroduce Melanie Meyers to tal k about the project.
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MELANI E MEYERS: Good norning. Good
norning. | was going to say Council Menber Wprin,
but 1'll say Council Menber Garodnick and the other
menbers of the conmttee. Thank you for having us.
My nane is Melanie Meyers. | ama |land use
attorney with Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver &
Jacobson. And the application before you is a
rezoning that would extend an existing R8A District
over the block bounded by West 117'" Street, West
118'" Street, Frederick Dougl ass Boul evard and St.

Ni chol as Avenue. You can say on that site.

The project site itself is on the
eastern portion of the block and the project that
this rezoning would facilitate has three
conmponents. It’s the creation of a cultural center
for the cormunity. It’s the reuse of an existing
building for residential and it's the creation of a
new residential building on the south side. The
two buildings that are on the site are really quite
extraordinary. Now we can go to the next site.

What you're looking at is a structure
whi ch was the forner St. Thomas Church that is
| ocated on 118'" Street. And what you see in this

picture is an image of the facility the church at
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the time that the property was acquired by the
Artinmus Conmpany. It’s a gorgeous structure. [|’'m
not sure you can tell fromthis building. It was
de-sanctified about 10 years ago and the church was
prepared to denolish the facility. The comunity
organi zed. The elected officials organized and
they were at |east able to save the structure.

When Artinus acquired the property, the first thing
that they did was to work on stabilizing and
restoring the building. And what you see is the
facade of the building after the scaffol ding was
taken down, about a nonth ago.

So, what woul d happen to this? The
other building on the site, | think is the next
building, is a school building that had been
operated by the St. Thomas Church. Wen it was in
operation it was for a school at that site. It was
al so enpty for a period of tine, but is currently
bei ng occupi ed by the Harl em Hebrew School

The proposal for the church is to take
that structure and turn it into a cultural center
and performance space. And what you’'re | ooking at
now is a rendering of what the interior of the

buil ding would I ook like. If we could nove sort of
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qui ckly, because a |ot of work has been done. This
is the interior of the site and it would continue
to be | ooking as wonderful as this. Go ahead. And
what the proposal would be is to create on the
upper floor a perfornmance space that could be used
by a variety of Harlem based cultural facilities.
And bel ow grade, there’'s actually additional space
for individual users that could have additional
studi o space and al ong those |ines.

There’s been a substantial outreach
with the conmmunity and a nunber of the users that
we see as being potential occupants and users of
the space are on here. And Artinus has reached out
t hrough the community board, through the el ected
officials, will be reaching out through cultural
affairs to help programthe space. They’ ve had
neeti ngs, once the building was safe enough to
actually allow people in. There have been neetings
totalk to the different cultural organizations.
And we think when this is in place and works, it
wll be a great anenity for the comunity.

So that’s the part of the project on
West 118'" Street. In addition to that, there

woul d be two residential projects being built on
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the project site. A ong St. N cholas Avenue, there
woul d be about a 73-unit building that would be a
renovation and restoration of the school building
as well as an enlargenent of the site.

On the southern side at 117'" Street,
there woul d be a new building that woul d be about
74-units which would be a m xed i ncone buil di ng.

This is just taking a | ook at the
property fromthe corner of 117'" Street and St.

Ni chol as Avenue. So you can see the two buil dings
that woul d be constructed as part of this project.
The residential buildings. And what this would
require in order to allowit to happen, is a
rezoni ng. Frederick Dougl ass Boul evard is
currently zoned RA8 and we woul d proposed to extend
that district over the block to cover the project
site.

Wiile we’'re doing that, we would al so
be maki ng sone of the existing buildings in the
m d- bl ock conplying with current zoning controls,
as well as allowing for the restoration of the
cultural center and the creation of the new

housi ng.
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And we think there’'s |ots of
opportunities for this project. W'’ve been
fortunate to receive the recommendati on of approval
fromthe community board, the borough president,
and city planning. And we hope for your support as
wel I . Thank you.

COUNCL MEMBER GARODNI CK:  Thank you
very much. | want to note we’ve been joined by
Counci | Menber WIllians and this site for the
benefit of our colleagues is located in the
District of Council Menber |Inez D ckens who has
asked that | read the following into the record at
this norning s hearing.

Actually nore specifically, she asked
Counci| Menber Weprin to read it. But as | am
here, 1 will do it instead.

Good nmorning. | would like to thank
Council Mark Weprin, Chair of the Zoning &
Franchi ses Subcomittee and the other distinguished
menbers of the subcommttee for allowing ne to
provi de testinony on the West 117'" Street rezoning
project which is located in nmy district and seeks a
rezoning. From R7A to R8A for the eastern portion

of the district. Sorry, eastern portion of the
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bl ock, bounded by West 117'" and West 118'" Street,
bet ween Frederick Dougl ass Boul evard and St.

Ni chol as Avenue.
This rezoning will facilitate a m xed-
use devel opnent contai ning approximately 151-
dwel ling units and over 12,000 square feet of space
for local conmmunity users in the restored and
repurposed St. Thomas the Apostle Church | ocated at
West 118'" Street. The 151-dwelling units will be
provided principally in two buildings and newy
constructed residential building on West 117'" and
t hrough the conversion and expansi on of an existing
school building fronting on St. Ni cholas Avenue.
After several neeting with the
project’s devel oper, Artimnmus Construction, to
address the concerns that are inportant to ne and
my conmmunity. And having considered all the issues
and the commtnents that have been made to ne by
t he devel oper, | am supportive of the project.
First, Artinus is conmtted to the
preservation of the former St. Thomas the Apostle
Church buil ding which is over 100 years old, was
conpleted in 1907 and is known for its unique

historic architectural design. It is not however
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designated by the city as a | andmark and therefore
at risk of destruction. They will conpletely
restore the church facade and restore the buil ding.

My conmunity was conpl etely against the
alternative, which was to have the church
denol i shed. Artinmus will be able to preserve and
restore this historic cultural institution and
| ocal conmunity groups will be able to occupy it at
a significantly reduced cost. The devel oper has
assured nme that the restored church building wll
be used as community facility space, dedicated to
serving local community art and cul tural groups as
well as allow ng affordable rental rates for non-
profit groups.

Wth regard to affordabl e housing that
this project will provide and which is very nuch
needed in ny district. Artinus has agreed to
i ncrease the anount of affordable housing from 20%
to 30% of the dwelling units that will be
constructed in the West 117'" Street buil di ng.

This new conm tnent which we were able to secure
wi |l provide that 20% of these units will be
af fordabl e to | ow i ncone househol ds nmaeki ng no nore

than 60% AM and an additi onal 10% of these units
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will be affordable to m ddl e i ncone househol ds
maki ng no nore than 165% of AM.

In addition, Artinmus has agreed to
expl ore potential further increases to the
af f ordabl e housi ng opportunities within the
devel opnent by commtting to make every effort to
expl ore affordabl e housi ng prograns that may be
avail abl e for conversion of existing buildings
i ncl udi ng options for affordable home ownership,
prior to the conversion and expansion of the
exi sting school building to residential use.

Artimus has also agreed to work with ny
office to insure that the Harl em Hebrew Charter
School whi ch now occupi es the existing schoo
building, will remain in nmy beloved vill age of
Harlem Artinmus will work with Harl em Hebrew
Charter Center and nmy office to identify and
eval uation rel ocation options to another property
within the Harlem community or potentially
returning to its current |ocation.

Artimus has provided ne with a letter
whi ch outlines the above conm tnents which were
secured through our thoughtful discussions. And I

ask that it be made part of the record. | would
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like to thank Artinus for working with ne to
address ny concerns. And am pl eased that they
share nmy strong conmtnent to keeping ny conmunity
affordable. | amconfident that we can continue to
work together to create affordabl e housing. Not
only for Harlemtes, but for all New Yorkers. |
respectfully ask that ny coll eagues on the
subcomm ttee vote to approve this application.
Sincerely, Inez E. Dickens, Council Menber fromthe
9'" Council District.

Wth that, Council Menber WIIianms has
a question.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AVS: Thank you so
much. |1’ msorry | cane late. | was just | ooking
over sone of what you wote.., and what you have and
what Council Menber Dickens has. And so it says to
rai se affordable housing from20%to 30% But.., so
we use the word affordable a | ot and we ki nd of
stretch it out. | looks like 20%is 60% of AM,
which I think will be considered affordable as nost
people think. But the question is affordable to
who? Because then it says that 10% of the units
will be affordable no nore 165% of AM. | don’t

think that’s generally, 165%is not usually what
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people are thinking is affordable. It is
af fordabl e to sonebody. But ny question is.., but
ny issue is usually on the |ower incone of the
spectrum So, as far as |I'mconcerned, this is
still nmore of an 80-20 than anything el se. And
that nodel seens a little outdated to me. And we
really want to see how we can digin alittle nore
to nore affordable units. And | w sh the
Counci | woman was here so |1’'d be able to speak. Is
this the final nunbers that you are presenting, or
are you |l ooking to maybe push a little further down
into affordability for the units?

MELANI E MEYERS: | think that these are
the nunbers that we’'re looking at. And the idea is
that this could.., that there are different
definitions of affordability. There are different
househol ds and types of households that live in al
comrunities, including Harlem And the goal here,
and the discussions were to | ook at a range of
affordability. So, | think it was correct to cal
the 165% AM to be a noderate or m ddl e incone.
Which is what we did. And so we were |ooking at a
| ow i ncone conponent, a noderate income conponent

and nmar ket rate.
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COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: | just want
to just say on the record, you know, obviously, I
ama fan of umm m xed-inconme. | want to nmake sure
that there’s a broad spectrum | don’t think that
80-20s work. And I think to ne, this is exactly
what that is. And it helped, | think, what’'s
gentrified a lot of the communities that we're now
trying to make sure it doesn’t get further
gentrified. And we want to nake sure that there's
deep affordability in sone of these communities.
And so |’ m concerned about the nunbers that are
presented today.

COUNCI L MEMBER GARCDNI CK:  Thank you
Any ot her questions for the panel.

[ Background tal k]

COUNCI L MEMBER GARDONI CK:  Counci
Menmber Cunmbo has a question. M. Richards could
you just pass that down?

[ Background noi se]

COUNCI L MEMBER GARCDNI CK:  Well, it
wasn’'t exactly what | had in mnd.

[ Laught er]

COUNCI L MEMBER GAROCDNI CK:  Let’s see if

Counci | Menber Cunbo can take the hint.
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[ Laught er]

COUNCI L MEMBER GAROCDNI CK:  Here Lauri e.
Lauri e, Laurie.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO. | was very
inmpressed with the mx of cultural institutions
that you proposed for the project. | wanted to
know i f you’ ve had di scussions with these
organi zations. Are these sinply proposed or are
t hese organi zations that are not only interested,
but economically prepared to nove forward? And
what woul d be sonme of the ways that the project
woul d assi st these organi zati ons, because |'m
famliar with many of the organizations and the
ability to expand to another |ocation. To have a
second location. O to even expand on a | arger
way, would be very cost prohibitive at this tine.
Wuld this project allow any financial incentives
for these organi zations to be a part of this
proj ect?

EVAN KASHANI AN:  Thank you for your
question. In answer to the first part of your
guestion. W’ ve been talking with all of them W
had a neet and greet with alnost all of them who

came to the space. It was pretty amazi ng, because
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we got a mx of corments fromall of them which was
great. The second part of your question is, right
now we’ re | ooking for an operator for the space
that’s going to try and tie all of these
organi zations together. For exanple, if one art
group wanted to use it for presentation one day,
they would set it up for that, and if a dance group
wanted to use it for a show the next night, they
woul d set it up that way. And everybody woul d cone
toit.

We’'ve committed to work with | oca
groups to nmake sure that it’s affordable for them
And we’ ve nmade that conmtnent to the conmunity
board when they brought up the same question that
you had. So we’'re committed to nake this a | oca
Harl em based comunity arts facility. And that’s
probably the main aspect of this project. Because
there’s nothing like it in Harlem And when you go
inside this building, it’s absolutely beautiful.
And we want to nake sure it stays that way.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO: | just want to
further clarify with that. So this would be not a
space where people would be | ooking to have a

cul tural hone necessarily. This wouldn’t be where
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someone’ s organi zati on woul d be housed. This would
be a space where different organi zations could
utilize this space in a cost effective way to do
different perfornmances, exhibitions, prograns, etc.

EVAN KASHANI AN:  That’s correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER CUMBO  kay.

COUNCI L MEMBER GARCDNI CK:  Thank you
very much Ms. Cunbo. Council Menber Torres has a
questi on.

COUNCI L MEMBER TORRES: Yes, | want to
foll owup on Council Menber WIlians’ questions
regarding the affordability. |s there a precise
i ncome range that you're targeting? O is it
simply 61%to 165% of AM and then 60. |Is there a
nore targeted range. Because it’s a w de gap.

EVAN KASHANI AN:  No. 20%w Il be bel ow
60. And then 10%w |l be at 165.

COUNCI L MEMBER TORRES: Right. But is
that., so it’s 10%of the units are going to be set
asi de for those naki ng between 61 and 165% of AM.

MELANI E MEYERS: Correct. Right. So
the 20% woul d be tied to households that are to 60%
whi ch coul d be between 40 and 60% The 165% those

units could be affordable to househol ds maki ng up
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to 165% but the rents would be tied closer to the
165 AM | evel.

COUNCI L MEMBER TORRES: For those 10%
of .

MELANI E MEYERS: Correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER TORRES: Ckay. So it's
not actually 61%to 165% It’'s closer to.., do you
have sone sense of what the range would be?

MELANI E MEYER: Maybe we could do it in
terms of what the household i ncones would be for
165. Whuld that be hel pful ?

EVAN KASHANI AN:.  No. | think maybe..,
it’s 10%of the units at 165% not between 60 and
165.

COUNCI L MEMBER TORRES: |'m sorry.

It’s going to be at. ay. No nore than 165.

EVAN KASHANI AN:  Right. And then 20%
bel ow 60% Between 40 and 60%

COUNCI L MEMBER TORRES: Between 40 and
60.

EVAN KASHANI AN:  Correct.

COUNCI L MEMBER TORRES: Ckay. Thank
you.

EVAN KASHANI AN:  You're wel cone.
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CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Ckay. Any ot her
guestions to the panel? | don’t see any. So |’'m
going to excuse this group. Thank you very mnuch
|’mgoing to ask if any other menbers of the public
are here that want to testify on this matter

[ Pause]

CHAl RPERSON WEPRI N:  You can go.
Alright, | don’'t see anyone else here to testify.
So I"’mgoing to close this public hearing on this
item And we're going to nove onto our next item

[ Pause]

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Ckay. W' re not
novi ng down the Island of Manhattan. And we're
going to go to site 7, to the beginning of this
agenda, | believe. Alright. Yes. Council Menber
Johnson’s District. Land Use #62, 63, 64, 65

This is the dinton URA Site 7. | do
love that Site 7. Like Area 51 or sonething, |

don’t know.

[ Pause]
CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N: | know we have a
lot of traffic. | apologize. So, you know the..,

we're going to call up the., are you all together

|’ve got nore.., |I’ve got four here. Ckay.
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Alright. | have Amar Sen, Joe Restuccia, Mrcie
Kesner, Chris Valestra (phonetic), Thehbia Walters
and Charles Bendit. | don’t know who's m ssing?
Chris, you're here to help if we need you.
Alright. So as you speak, please listen. For the
record we need to know who i s speaking. So when
you speak, if you could please state your name and
when we cone back to you, if you could state your
name again. It’s a little annoying, but that way
when the record is transcribed we actually know
whose tal king. So whenever you're ready. | don’t
know who wants to start. So whenever you're ready,
pl ease state your nane.

THEHBI A WVALTERS: Good norni ng, Chair
Weprin and nenbers of the subcomittee. |'m
Thehbia Walters, Director of Manhattan Pl anning at
t he Departnment of Housing Preservation and
Devel opnment. |I'mvery excited to testify in
support of Land Use Itens, 62, 63, 64 and 65.
Which will collectively facilitate the Site 7
Project. W call this project Site 7 because the
vacant city-owned |and portion of the project was
wWithin site 7 of the now expired Cinton Urban

Renewal area. Located on West 52" and West 53"
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Streets, between 10'" and 11'" Avenues. And
al t hough the plan expired in 2009, the conmunity
has used the goals of this plan to guide the
redevel opnent of the area over the |ast 40 years.
Which are to provide for a range of incone bands
and housing that exhibits good design in ternms of
privacy, light, air and open space. Wile
providing community facilities, parks and retai
uses. It’s our belief that this project
acconpl i shes these goals and nore.

This project is an outstandi ng exanpl e
of the strong role of conmmunity and inplenenting
t he goal s of a nei ghborhood. And the partnership
bet ween | ocal non-profit organizations, elected
officials and city governnent.

We have a presentation for you this
norning to go through the details of this conpl ex
project. There are three buil ding being devel oped
as aresult of this project. A 103-unit
permanent |y affordabl e project being devel oped by
Cl i nton Housi ng Devel opnent Corporation. A 405-
unit building that is 20% affordable, totaling 81-
dwel ling units being devel oped by a joint venture

bet ween Taconi c | nvestnment Partners and Ritternman




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 59
Capital and the city owned historically significant
former manufacturing building that is being
converted into 22 units of affordable housing by
C i nton Housi ng.

And there are also three beautifully
pl anned and assessabl e gardens that are being
created or expanding an existing garden. The top
line for the city is that there wll be
approxi mately 208 units of affordabl e housing
created across three buildings through the use of
city financing, the inclusionary housing program
partnership with an adjacent property owner and
t hrough the use of city assets that include |and
and devel opnent rights.

The project al so provides conmerci al
space for two vested urban renewal tenants. |
t hank you for your tinme and I'll turn it over to
Charles Bendit.

CHARLES BENDI T: Thank you Chai rman and
honor abl e nenbers of the conmittee. M nane is
Charles Bendit, | am co-founder of Taconic
| nvestment Partners. W are a devel oper, here in
New York City. While we’ ve done things around the

country, we have focused our efforts nost recently
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in New York City. Some of the projects that we
have done include 111 8'" Avenue, a conversion of
an old industrial building into what is no Google’s
headquarters. W are the designated.., one of the
desi gnat ed devel opers for the Spora Project, what
is now called Essex Crossing which will be a 1000
units, half of which will be affordable. W are a
co-devel oper of The Cal edonia on 10'" Avenue, one
of the first residential projects in Wst Chel sea.
We are the devel oper of The BankNote Building in
the Bronx. W own 1,400 units of mddle incone
housing in the Bronx. And we were the devel oper of
the | argest condom nium project in Brooklyn, in
East New York, which has provided 1,152 units of
af fordabl e condom niuns, in the range of $275 a
square foot, for people in that community. Anbng
other things that we have done in the city.

W are proud to be a part of this
public-private partnership with dinton Housing and
with HPD and we | ook forward to providing nearly
39% of the units as affordable units in this
proj ect .

I’d like nowto turn it over to M.

Rest ucci a.
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JOE RESTUCCIA: M nane is Joe
Restuccia. | am Executive Director of Cinton
Housi ng Devel opnent Conpany. W're a 41 year old
comruni ty devel opnent organi zati on on the west
side. And we are extrenely pleased to present to
you a project that is 39% af fordable. That has 208
af fordabl e units. But nost inportant for us and
our conmunity, it has a range of affordability.
The units range between 60% of AM, 80% of AM,
100% of AM, 125% of AM, and 165% of AM. And our
bi ggest issue in our community is that we have many
people who are at the low end or at the high end,
but not in the mddle. 1In this project, we are
able to serve people without themhaving to fal
t hrough those donor hol es of not being able to get
eligible for $1,000, or $200 or $300.
This project not only provides

af f ordabl e housi ng, but we also provide a |long term
honme for two very long conmunity tenants who are
conmmercial. One is Le Noble Lunber who has been in
busi ness since 1965 in this location. And the
other one is Cybert Tire who has been in business
since 1916 at this location. They will both have

per manent hones at this |ocation. However, Le
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Nobl e Lunber realizing that the nei ghborhood has
changed dramatically around themis not com ng back
with their current business of a |unber business.
They are bringing us an affordabl e supernmarket.

And we have a Letter of Intent signed with the
supermarket today. So we know it’'s going to cone
in, definitely.

The last thing is we are bringing open
space to this project. And there are three
communi ty gardens that are being built. One
expanded. That really make a difference besides
t he open space that surrounds the project. So we
t hank you very nuch for this and working in concert
with our private partner and with HPD we have been
able to put together a bunch of very diverse trends
that bring together this urban renewal area was
condemmed in 1969. This is the second to |ast site
to be finished. And we're very happy to be able to
do this. Thank you.

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Thank you

AMAR SEN:. H . M nane is Amar Sen
|’ m Seni or Associate at Handel Architects. [|I’'m
just going to quickly show you a little bit about

the building so you understand what we are doi ng.
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Can you hear nme okay? So this is...
sorry. DeWtt Cinton Park, 11'" Avenue, 10'"
Avenue, 539 Street and 52" Street. The two
projects, the Taconic-Ritterman Project is this
bui Il ding here and this building here, with a 70
foot courtyard in between. It’s all rental
residential. Their 20% affordable in that building
is distributed equitably throughout. The CHDC
building is here. Its 103 units. It’s al
permanently affordable. And the courtyard
conti nues through the center of the block. The FAR
is 8 here and we’ ve nmasked the bul k of the
bui | di ngs up towards the m d-bl ock to stay
consistent with the Archstone dinton Building
which is 350 feet. The Mercedes House is also
about 350 feet. AT&T 450 feet. And we're at 260
feet here and 171 feet, | think here. And the CHDC
building is 123 and 124, sonething |ike that.
This is the 539 Street el evation and

one of the things that was comments fromCty
Pl anning early on was to break up the street well.
This is the 120 foot base height that’s required,
t he maxi mnum base hei ght and we’ ve carved into that

in the CHDC building and then again on the Taconi c-
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Ritterman building to break up the street well.
There are a couple of waivers here that will go
with few on the next presenter. Height, setback
and rear setback

[ Pause]

[M ke stops]

AMAR SEN:. ..perspective at the street.
It’s continuous retail along the street. Both
bui |l dings, the only interruptions are the Taconic-
Ritterman | obby, parking entrance for Taconic-
Ritterman and then the Le Noble and Cybert Tire
entrances over here. The CHDC | obby is around the
corner, accessed off a garden. And everything else
is retail. The bulk of which will be the new
super mar ket .

And then, |ast but not |east, a section
t hrough the buil ding showi ng how the retail spaces.
Sonme of the retail spaces are at grade and connect
down. The Le Noble, MU space is here and Cybert
Tire is here. This is the CHDC building and this
is the Taconic-Ritterman building going up to 22-
stories and 260 feet. And that’'s it. And Il

turn it over to Marcie Kesner of Kraner Levin
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MARCI E KESNER: Good norning. M nane
is Marcie Kesner. |I'ma planner with the law firm
of Kramer Levin Naftalis and Frankel, |and use
counsel to the co-applicants in this application
wi th HPD.

HPD and the co-applicant are proposing
a series of zoning actions to allow the
construction of the buildings that Arar Sen has
just shown you on block 1081, the northern bl ock of
this project area. Wich will contain up to 508
dwel ling units. A provision of community open
space, |low, noderate and m ddl e i ncone housi ng and
al so protecting the rights of existing arts rel ated
uses within 545 West 52" Street, one of the
exi sting buildings on the site. The zoning actions
will also facilitate the rehabilitation and
expansi on of the city owned buil ding on the bl ock
to the south which will provide 22 affordable
dwel ling units.

Let nme go through the zoning actions
whi ch are before you. There are four basic zoning
actions before you. The first one is an anendnent
to the zoning map for the project area. The

project area is entirely mapped within the Specia
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Cinton District. On the northern block we would
be proposing the rezoning of an existing M-5
district to an RO district wth a comercial C2-5
overlay and a portion of a snmall R8-A district
woul d al so be changed to the sane RO district with
a C2-5 overl ay.

On the southern block an existing
portion of an R8 district would be mapped to a R3-A
district. A text amendnent would al so extend the
western area of C2 of the Special Cinton District
to these sane portions of the blocks. These wll
permt the devel opnent of the resident uses that
are before you. Increase the permtted density of
the site. And will provide for the special height
and special and setback regul ati ons that apply
within the Special Cinton District within this
western area of C2.

The second mmj or action al so consists
of additional text anmendnents. One is to extend
the inclusionary housing programto these sites.
And the other is to expand the range of
i ncl usi onary housi ng bonusabl e i ncone bands for
devel opnments on the project site which will allow

for an option of not just |ow incone househol ds but
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al so I ow, noderate and m ddl e i nconme househol ds.
As Joe Restuccia has explained, this is very
inportant to the community to provide for a w de
range of incone types in the nei ghborhood.

The third action would.., the third text
anmendnent woul d preserve the rights of the existing
tenants within the arts related facility |ocated at
545 West 52" Street would allow for., so it
explicitly permts those uses within this special
district. The uses are related to the arts but are
not necessarily considered arts or conmunity
facility uses which would have been permtted as of
right. They include theaters, rehearsal space,
of ficers, scenery, construction, film production
studi os. These are all uses, art gallery. These
are all uses that the conmunity wants to see
preserved in this nei ghborhood. The other uses
that woul d be preserved which would be permtted by
this text anendnent are the Cybert Tire and the Le
Nobl e Lunber uses. So that again, the existing
character of the m xed-use nei ghborhood woul d be
preserved.

The third action is the designation of

t he Urban Devel opnent Action Area and the approval
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of a UDAA project pursuant to Article 16 of the
General Municipal Law by HPD. The disposition area
on the northern bl ock includes both | and and unused
devel opnent rights fromthe site at 545 Wst 52"
Street as expanded pursuant to a ULURP that was
approved in 1994. On the southern block the
di sposition site is the fornmer manufacturing
building that will be converted into a 22-unit
af fordabl e devel opnment. Al the disposition areas
are proposed for disposition by HPD

The fourth action. The final action.
Is a | arge scal e general devel opnent specia
permt. The designation of the northern bl ock
which is outlined on the nap before you in red,
whi ch woul d include three existing buildings and
two new buil dings. The Taconic-Ritternman buil di ng
and the CHDC buil ding, being the two new buil di ngs
and affordable.., existing affordabl e housing
buildings included in the site as well as the arts
rel ated building at 545 West 52" Street. The
special permt will allow for the transfer of
unused devel opnent rights fromthe western portion
of the proposed |arge scale, the R8-A portion to be

used on the CHDC and Taconic-Ritterman’s portion of
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the site. And additionally will allow for height
and setback waivers that would all ow the building
that has been carefully designed with the input of
the community and CHDC to be built as shown. So
t hose i nclude base waivers, front setback waivers
to allow for the shape of the street scape, the
street facade. As we’'ve shown, it's a sort of |oft
| ook. The waivers for height which would allow for
a taller building in the mddle of the block
pulling the density away from DeWtt Cinton Park
and from 11'" Avenue. And the rear setback waivers
whi ch woul d all ow for nore workabl e and better
floor plans for the buildings in the upper |evels
of the buildings. And would allow for better use
of space. W can go into nore detail, if you would
i ke, about the height and setback waivers. |
doubt that’s sonething that you want to see, but we
have maps and plans and they' re in the brochures.

UNI DENTI FI ED MALE: M. Chairnman ot her
than that it's pretty straight forward.

CHAI RPERSON VEPRI N:  Thank you. | am
going to call on Council Menber Johnson who

represents this area. Wo has a statenent he wants
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to nmake, and then there’s a couple of nenbers at
t he nmonment that have questions.

COUNCI L MEMBER JOHNSON:  Thank you
Chair Weprin for the opportunity to share ny
support today for the Cinton U ban Renewal Area,
Site 7.

Land Use Itens 62 to 65 represent a
series of actions as you've heard by HPD, the
Cl i nton Housi ng Devel opnent Corporation and
Taconi c-Ritterman needed to effectuate the
devel opnent of three buildings | ocated at 525 West
52" Street, 540 West 53¢ Street and 556 to 560
West 52" Street. This application as you' ve heard
woul d facilitate two new buildings with
approxi mately 508 dwelling units, 184 of which wll
be affordable. Building C which will be devel oped
by Cinton Housi ng Devel opnment Corporation wll
contain 103 permanently affordable apartnents
rangi ng fromstudios to three bedroons. To
i ndividuals and fam lies earning up to 80, 100, 130
and 165% of AM. Building Dw il be devel oped by
Taconic-R tterman and will contain 405 apartnents
with 81 permanently affordable to individuals and

fam lies earning 40 and 50% of AM .
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| am pl eased that Taconic-R tterman has
agreed to the sane fixtures and finishes in all the
units as well as distributed the affordable units
through 81.8% of this building. | am proud that
the precedent that this agreenent sets for the
necessary distribution above the m ninumthreshold
acceptable to this community. The application wll
also facilitate the rehabilitation of the existing
Captain Post Building with 22 studios and two
bedroons all of which will be affordable to
househol ds earni ng between 80 to 100% of AM.

Overall this project will achieve 39%
affordability. Let nme repeat, 39% affordability.
That is a big deal. Further, the proposed actions
Wi || support the devel opnment of three new conmunity
gardens which will contain 7,000 square feet of new
public open space. These gardens will join a
network of gardens in Hell’s Kitchen operated by
Cl i nton Housi ng Devel opment Corporation with keys
allowing entry to any individual who lives in the
nei ghbor hood for $2.00. Keys can be bought at the
| ocal conmmunity board office.

| amgrateful to Taconic-Ritterman for

their $200, 000 contribution to the Cinton Housing
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Land Trust for inprovenents to DeWtt Cinton Park
across the street fromtheir devel opnent. DeWtt
Cinton Park is an inportant public park with
active and passive space. This contribution wll
set the park on a path towards nodernization and
al so help set the bar for private commtnents to
| ocal parks from devel opers in our comrunity.

This project contributes to the
exenpl ary diversity of the conmunity and represents
a nodel of public and private partnership to
revitalize an underutilized area in an inclusive
manner. |t does through a diverse of uses that
conmpl ements trends in the nei ghborhood. Not only
does the provision of the affordable units at
various bands represent the priorities of the |loca
communi ty, council and admnistration. But should
serve as a nodel to other projects on howto insure
a diverse and healthy m xed i ncone community above
t he standard 20% af f ordabl e projects w thout
overwhel m ng community opposition with out of
context hei ght and bul k.
I’d like to thank nmy former coll eagues

on Manhattan Community Board 4 for their

conpr ehensi ve and t horough work on this project.
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It is a conplicated devel opnent with many novi ng
parts, as you' ve heard fromthe many | and use
actions today. And |I'mproud to represent a
community and a community board district that
conmprehends tricky |and use projects.

Thank you to Taconic-Ritterman and to
Cl i nton Housi ng Devel opnent Corporation for your
col l aboration on this project. Thank you to HPD
for your engagenent and seeing this through to the
end. Thank you to the new adm nistration for
taking this project seriously and in making sure we
got here today. And lastly | also want to say that
there are many parts of the city which are | ooked
at as food deserts in sone way, where there is not
access to affordable food or groceries. This new
af fordabl e supernarket is really going to be a big
deal and the facilitation of keeping two very |ong
term smal | businesses in the nei ghborhood, Cybert
and Le Noble is a big deal as well.

I amincredibly proud of this project
and M. Chairman | thank you for the opportunity to
testify here today. And | ask ny colleagues to

pl ease support this project.
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CHAI RPERSON VWEPRI N: Thank you Counci
Menber Johnson. Thank you Corey.

I"d like to call on Council Menber
Wil liams, followed by Council Menber Reynoso

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  Thank you M.
Chair. First just on the face of it,
congratul ations to the council nenber for
negoti ating a deal and thank you so nuch
Qobviously on the face | think it’s a wonderful m x.
It goes well and above the 80-20. That’'s been a
huge problemin the city. So it’s just a wonderful
mx. |’mvery excited to hear about the different
uses that are going to be there. And even just as
i nportant, which often times doesn’t cone up, with
the fact that those commercial tenants were there a
long tinme, who don’t have automatic | ease renewal s
and protections like rent stabilized tenants that
wll be able to stay there. | would say,
hopefully, in future ones, we definitely need units
with nore bedroons. That sonmetines is a problem
No four bedroons and very small anobunts of three
bedroons. And hopefully at sonme point we'll be
able to even go to 40% AM. But | think these are

wonder f ul .
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| do have a couple of questions. One,
with the., even with this spread, all of the 60%
are in one building. | was trying to figure out
why they couldn’t have been spread across the
bui I di ngs.

JOE RESTUCCI A: Two different AHP
funding streans. The Taconic-Ritterman building is
bonds. AH 20 bonds. Qur building is HPD capital
noney and HPD actual |y bank noney. You know, HPD
subsidy. And that really created the split. CQur
goal though was in the main building. The nmain
af f ordabl e housing building to have a broad range
of inconmes. That was the real push that we did.

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Thank you Joe
Restuccia. Mke sure to state your nanme before you
speak.

[ Laught er]

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: | under st and.
| sonetinmes get nervous when all of the | ow incones
are condensed into one. Are MABEs bei ng used on
this project? And I'd like to focus a lot on the
Ms.

[ Laught er}
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JOE RESTUCCI A:  Yes, we have the norma
MABE commi tments for these projects.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: Do we have
any nunbers?

JCE RESTUCCI A:  No. But we can
certainly get themto you

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS: That woul d be
great. Thank you. Congratul ations again. And
congratul ations to Council Menber Johnson

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N: Thank you Counci
Menber WIllianms. Council Menber Antoni o Reynoso.
Let’s see if you can do this right this tine there
Donovan. There you go, good job.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNCSO: | want to
congratul ate Council Menber Johnson and the work
that the developers did in this case. It’'s the
contrast between what we were | ooking at in the
begi nning of this session and what we’'re seei ng now
is far and away. |I'mreally grateful for this but
| do want to ask one question. There's only 81
units in the Taconic-Ritterman building. There's
sonet hing that sone folks are famliar with. It’s
call ed the poor door policy. It’s where all the

af fordabl e housing is in one building and all the
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| uxury housing is in another building. So all the
poor peopl e going through one side and all the
af fluent people go in the other. And it’s just a
concern. And in this case it seens |ike every
single building is all affordable and that the
Taconic-Ritterman project is not. It has the
majority of the luxury. So, | know that you guys
tal ked about different funding streans and why t hat
is the way it is. |If you could just clarity that
for me alittle.

JOE RESTUCCIA: M/ nane is Joe
Restuccia. Absolutely. W have no poor door
policy. Qur community board.., | co-chair the
housi ng commttee of the |ocal commnity board.
This is the kind of thing we fight against in every
single inclusionary application. And how we deal
with this is, nunber one, the units are distributed
to the greatest degree throughout the project.
There at 81% of the floors here, not 65% as
required by HPD. In many inclusionary projects,
the finishes, neaning the countertops, the floors,
the appliances are different. |In this project,
they’'re the same. The anenities, anything, the

heal th club, the this, the that. They're
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accessible to everybody. Qur community board does
not permt and will not approve of an inclusionary
proj ect that does not have everything distributed.
There are no poor doors on west side of Manhattan.
W won't stand for it. Period.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOCSO | appreciate
that. So the Taconic-Ritterman buil di ng cannot ..,
couldn’t take on, let’'s say.., there is 103 total
af fordable units in the 540 West 53'% Street
building. W couldn’t add ten nore buildings to
the Taconic-Ritterman and put sone |uxury buil di ngs
in the 540. Do you understand? | guess what |’'m
saying is that all the poor people, right. Anybody
that’s getting affordable housing is going to be in
one building. Al of them

JCE RESTUCCI A: No.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNOCSO  Let ne just
finish. Yes, they're going to be in the 540 West
534 Street, they' re going to be in 560 West 52
Street and they’'re going to be in 464 West 25'N
Street and in the Taconic-Ritterman buil di ng
there’s only 81 units out of the 324. So there are
going to be buildings where there’s only affordable

housing, right. And | understand that.., | see that
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you guys got the keys. There s access inside the

building. There’s a lot of things you guys did.

And 39%is extraordinary. |’'mnot taking away from
any of the great things that are happening. |I’'m
just concerned. | don’t |ike when one group of

folks that tend to be Latino and Bl ack, they get
the af fordabl e housing portion. Let’s say go in
one building, and then all the affluent folks go in
the other building. Like, that’s a concern to ne.
And you’re saying you don't feel that that’s the
case.

JOE RESTUCCIA: | know it’s not the
case for the follow ng reason. The only reason the
ot her buildings exist is because the financing is
all tied together. The Cdinton Housing Buil dings
are 100% affordable. They are al so inclusionary.
But the noderate and m ddl e i ncome housi ng cannot
be financed wi thout the luxury portion of that
other building being built. You tie it al
together and that’s what gets you those noderate
and mddle inconme units. And that’s the exciting
part for us. W have tried to do this for over 15
years and have been unable to do this spread of

incones. It’s only low and |uxury. Low and
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luxury. We want to get the people in the mddle,
because in ny nei ghborhood, people who nake.., you
know, it’'s the people that Iive in public housing
who now work in sanitation and soneone works at HPD
and | can’t give them an apartnent or house them
because they make too nuch. They nmake $2, 000 or
$3,000 to nmuch. They nmke $60, 000 total conbined
inconme. This project gives thema place to be.

And that’s why you have to do all of these
bal ancing things to nake it work out.

COUNCI L MEMBER REYNCSO Wl | after 15
years congratulations and this is one project that

|’ mgoing to probably be voting for it. So thank

you.
JOE RESTUCCI A: Thank you.
CHAI RPERSON VWEPRI N:  Any ot her

questions fromnenbers of the conmttee. Uh, | see

none. W' re going to excuse this fine group and

thank them Is there anyone else here to testify
on this matter, Site 7? | see none. W’re going
to close this hearing and nove onto the last item
on our agenda. And we appreciate the patience of

t hose who are here.
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This is also in Manhattan. W are
going to do Land Use No. 87. I1'd like to call up

Aoria Ann Kirstein, Mchael Silverman and Jeff

Davi s.

This is in Council Menber Levine's
district.

[ Pause]

[M ke of f]

CHAI RPERSON VWEPRIN:  Alright. If that
panel could please nmake their way to the front.
Gentl eman and | ady, whenever you are ready. Again
the sanme rules apply as far as stating your nane
before you speak so we can have a nice clean
record. And whenever you’'re ready, please.

M CHAEL SILLERVMAN. Good norning M.
Chair and council menbers. Mchael Sillerman at
Kramer Levin. W are counsel to the applicant for
this rezoning which is an affiliate of the Chetrit
G oup which is a prospective purchaser of the
rezoning site. And rather than read ny testinony,
I’d like to summarize it by reference to the maps
that were distributed to you

The background here is that in 2007

there were 51 bl ocks on the Upper Wst Side between
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97'" and 110'" Street that were rezoned to
contextual zoning to shift themfrom a buil ding
form which was seen to be i nappropriate for the
built context there because it permtted buil dings
that were not built to the street line and it
permtted extrenely tall buildings of 20 and 30
stories to be built. And the preference was to
rezone the entire area to a contextual envel ope
which has a fixed height limt to it and requires
buildings to be built to the street line. And the
rezoning site here, which is shown on the maps, is
a md-bl ock site between Col unbus and Amst erdam and
106'" to 105'" Street and that was proposed to be
rezoned to R8-A along 106'" Street which woul d have
had a maxi num hei ght of 120 feet and R8-B on 105'"
Street which woul d have had a maxi mum hei ght of 75
feet. And in fact, that rezoning which was
strongly supported by Conmunity Board 7 and by the
Manhattan Vall ey community was in fact adopted by
the Gty Planning Comm ssion but the site is
currently occupied by Jewish Hone Life Care, a
nursing hone. And it was brought to the attention
of the council and this was at that point the

Speaker’s district, the current Speaker’s district,
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that JHL intended to redevelop at that site and the
contextual zone woul d not have all owed themthe
hei ght of the new facility they wanted to buil d.
So it was as we referred to it, it was carved out
of the rezoning. It is the only block in this 51
rezoning area that was taken out. Subsequent to
that JHL determ ned not to redevelop at that site.
It has entered into a contract to sell the site to
our client. As part of the business deal, we
agreed to support a rezoning to restore the carve-
out. The carve-out reversal was very strongly
supported by Community Board 7, by a vote of 31 to
2, by the borough president and by the planning
comm ssion and you' |l hear fromthe | ocal
community. So, we respectfully ask you to reverse
and return to what shoul d have been done from a
| and use point of view here. Qur client is not
going to acquire this site until Jew sh Hone noves
to another site on the west side or somewhere el se
that's estimated to be no earlier than 2017 or
2018. So, we do not have a specific devel opnent
plan for this site, but we are conmtted to seek
and support the rezoning that we have so applied

for.
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CHAI RPERSON WEPRIN: Great. |Is anyone
el se going to testify yet? No. You don’t have to.
I[t’s up to you. GCkay. Make sure to say your nane.
GLORIA ANN KERSTEIN: I'mdoria Ann

Kerstein. |’mpresident of the Duke Ellington
Nei ghbor hood Associ ation, which is West 106'"
Street runs right through the heart of Mnhattan
Val |l ey. Seven years ago, we never could have
foreseen that seven years hence we’d have the
possibility to regain the protection that our
communi ty had fought so hard for back between 2004
and 2007. And to have the carve out approved at
that tine for the Jewi sh Hone was sonething that we
ardently opposed. So to be here today with the
possibility of regaining that protection for
Manhattan Valley is a big plus and a big bonus and
we don definitely support getting this carve out
elimnated once and for all. | do want to just say
that the application that has been presented by
Chetrit Park West Village does not nention anything
about affordabl e housing, but | want to take the
opportunity to just say for public record, that
Manhattan Valley in the 30 years that |’ve |ived

t here, has been | osing affordabl e housing hand over




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

SUBCOWM TTEE ON ZONI NG AND FRANCHI SES 85
fist and we woul d greatly be supportive of any
devel opnment on West 106'" Street, Duke Ellington
Boul evard to include as nmuch affordabl e housing as
possi bl e.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N:  Thank you very
much. 1’mgoing to call on Council Menber Levine
who represents this area now under the new |ines.
Right? So, he has a statenment to make and maybe
sonme questions as well. Council Menber Levine.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVI NE:  Thank you. |
nmostly just want to nake a statenment. This is
| argely uncontroversial. You heard the vote in the
communi ty board and | am going to be supporting
this nmeasure and encouragi ng nmy col |l eagues to do so
as well. | just have two inportant caveats to
point out. One does relate to the issue that
Goria Ann raised of affordable housing. This is a
nei ghbor hood where market pressures are pushing
tenants out because the rent stabilized stock is
renting at levels so far bel ow what market rate
rents are. And we want to try to stabilize this
af f ordabl e housi ng stock as nmuch as we can. And we
want to add to it where possible. So it would be a

trenmendous | ost opportunity if in this new
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devel opnent on 106'" Street we gain no new
affordabl e units. Currently it would be an
entirely market rate, in practice neans, |uxury
project. So |I'’mgoing to encourage HPD and the
devel oper in the community to | ook at sone ways to,
in the comng years, to bring affordabl e housing
into the project.

| also want to nmention a second caveat.
Which is the current plan does not allow for retai
on the ground floor on 106'" Street. This is a
very large facade. | believe its 600 feet and it
woul d be essentially a blank wall. | understand
that our conmunity concerns about the disruption
that retail could create. But this is a w de
street and lacking in a nunber of anmenities,
i ncluding a good green grocer and things |ike that.
Sol'd like to engage in a dialogue with the
community, with the devel oper and with the planning
department. While we have sonme tine in the comng
years, about whether we could introduce sone retai
element to the design. | guess I'll just ask both
parties here if you could weigh in on that issue,
on the question of retail and how you see this

effecting the project.
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GLORI A ANN KERSTEIN: |'d be happy to.
W did oppose having retail there, because Duke
Elli ngton Boulevard | think is the nost beautiful
residential, pastoral, if you want, two-way
boul evard on the entire Upper West Side. And if
fact, I think I’min Brooklyn, which | probably
shoul dn’t say as a Manhattanite when |’ m wal ki ng
al ong Duke Ellington Boul evard towards Centr al
Park. And we don’t want the disruption, the
deliveries, the, you know, we’'re already going to
have parki ng garages there for this devel opnent.
So we want to retain the tranquility that has
typi fied Duke Ellington Boul evard as just being
such an attractive place to be, now that our
organi zation helped get rid of the crack in the
nei ghbor hood that reigned for so long. So,
however, for the retail you're tal king about Mark
you know, a good grocery store, this Chetrit Park
West Village is getting, the Jewi sh Hone Parki ng
Garage on West 107'" bet ween Col unbus and Amster dam
is huge. Its seven stories and its 40 feet across.
And next to it is a lot on Colunbus, right next to
it. So when we net about this application with the

Jewi sh Hone and Chetrit, we said to them why don’t
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you focus there? See what you can do about this
vacant lot. You have this huge garage, seven
stories, you know, next to it. And you could build
right there on the Avenue which supports commercia
activity. You could build a retail there. So |
just wanted to put that out to you. As sonet hing,
yes, we had thought about that. And thought that
they had this satellite site where they could
devel op that in Manhattan Vall ey.

CHAI RPERSON VEPRI N:  Thank you
Counci | Menber Levine has a foll ow up.

M CHAEL SILLERMAN:. Let ne respond to
bot h.

CHAI RPERSON VEPRI N:  Say your nane.

M CHAEL SILLERVAN. M chael Sillerman.
Wth respect to affordable, | think both the
bor ough president and the planni ng conm ssion
recogni ze that in terns of a specific project there
is no specific project. This is very nmuch a future
| oaded project. And that the extent to which there
shoul d be and coul d be affordable housing is
sonet hi ng that should be taken up in the
conprehensi ve inclusionary analysis that the

adm ni stration is undertaking and there is tine
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here, and we’re not rushing to do anything before
that. Wth respect to the retail. W thought it
was a reasonable thing to consider. There' s 625
feet of frontage on 106'" Street and it is a very
wi de street. And the contextual envelope is very
restrictive. So it’s hard to create any variety
there. W did have an environnmental consultant do
an analysis of the need for retail in the area.

And the area is under retailed in certain ways
because on Col unbus and Ansterdam where there is
retail permitted. The physical formof the retai
spaces tend to be small. And there’s alimt to
what you could put there. So we were hopeful that
with the right kind of retail overlay or the right
kind of restrictions, you could get something that
woul d be conpati ble but we were conpletely
responsi ve and behol den to the comunity when they
said, we didn't want it, we took it out. So if the
community and the elected officials choose to
pursue this, it’s in your corner at your point. W
woul d be supportive, but we want to defer to our
nei ghbors on what’s done here.

COUNCI L MEMBER LEVINE: | just want to

go on the record with one nore really critical
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point to explain nmy vote here. Which is that it
shoul d not be in any way be m sconstrued as
condoni ng the devel opment of the JHL tower on 97'"
Street. This is a project built on open space in a
devel opnent whi ch was designed to have greenery and
light and air when it was created. It was really
designed to be an extension of Central Park. It’s
been rapidly chipped away with.., chi pped away from
by a series of projects. This |atest devel opnment
woul d only further dimnish the anount of open
space in this devel opnent, Park Wst Village. It
al so abuts a school, a public school, PS 163. The
construction process will weak havoc on the
education environnment at PS 163. Noise, dust,
trucks comng in and out, the contam nation of the
soil, the property led contamination. So for a
variety of reasons working against this devel opnment
on 97'" Street, | just want to reiterate that my
support for this zoning change today should not be
confused for support of the project on 97'" Street.
And wth that M. Chair, |’'ve concl uded.

CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N: Thank you M.
Levine. 1'd like to call on Council Menber

Wl lianms who has a question.
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COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  Thank you
very nmuch for your testinmony. | just want to nake
sure that | understood. So it was rezoned a few
years back and there was a carve out for this area
and now you' re trying to bring it back. Is it an
up zone or a down zone?

M CHAEL SILLERVAN: On an absol ute
basis, the amount of square footage that’s
permtted goes down slightly and certainly the
hei ght of what’s permitted goes way, way down.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLI AMS:  And then
we’'re not taking about what’s going to be devel oped
| ater.

M CHAEL SILLERVAN. W don’t know
what’ s going to be devel oped.

COUNCI L MEMBER W LLIAMS: [I’mgoing to
be supportive. M only concern here is now we may
have to tick back up to get all of the housing that
we're trying to get in the 200,000 unit affordable
pl an, which many think has to be 400,000. But wth
that said, | just want to nmake sure we put that out
there. W' re probably be slightly in other
comrunities, going slightly up, hopefully not too

much up, but 1’11 be supportive of it.
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CHAI RPERSON WEPRI N Thank you M.
WIlians.

M CHAEL SILLERMAN: | nean, the
absol ute square footage goes down, but the anmpunt
of residential that can be built does increase.

CHAI RPERSON VPRI N:  Thank you. Any
ot her questions? Anyone have comments? W thank
you very nmuch. We'd like to excuse this panel
Anyone here want to testify on this matter? | see
none. So we’'re going to close this hearing and we
are going to recess this neeting until Thursday
norning. And we're going to recess the votes until
Thursday norning at 10:30 a.m in Cty Hall
Conmttee Roomfor a vote on all the itenms we heard
today. And that will be followed right after that
by the full Land Use Committee at 11:00 a.m So
menbers of the subcommttee be there at 10:30 so we
can take care of the subconm ttee business and then
the Land Use neeting will be at 11:00.

I thank everybody for their patience.
And right now this neeting is now recessed unti l
Thur sday norning. Thank you.

[ Gavel ]
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